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; IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT =D
; FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK - CLLS OFFICE

UsS. piev— ~ny~t E.D.N'xl

UNITED pm'rzs OF AMERICA, ; o, WR3 0. 2000 ';!x
) AT
! plaintiff, ; ‘
R a '
Ve ) Ciwvil No. . .
a ) Lo b .
DELTA FUNDING CORFORATION, and ) — ™
DELTA FINANCIAL CORPORATION ) w 0 n j R\? 2
M ) «
Defendants. )
. ) -
) . 17
SIETON; 1!
GO, ML
The United States of America alleges: .  Sig

l-z‘This pction is brought by ;he United States to.enfcrce
the progisions of Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1368, as
amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1588, 42 U.S.C.
§§ 3501-3619 ("Falxr Housing Act"), and of the Eguel Credic
opporturity Act, 15 U.5.C. §S 1691~1591Ff {"Ecoa"). This action
ig also brought on behzlf of the Segretary of Housing and Urban
Developﬁent to enforce the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act,
12 U.S5.C. § 2607 ("RESPA*), and, acting upon notification and
suthorization to the Aftorney Generel by the Fedsral Trade
Cammisa#ou, under Seetion 13 (b) of the Federal Trade Commiggion
Act (“F'fc A:.t'“) , 15 U.5.C. § 53 (b}, and Section 108({c) of the
Truch in Lending Act ("TIIA"), 15 U.S.C. § 1607(c).

2, This court bhas jurisdictien of this action pursuant to

2B U.S'.C.- §§ 1331, 1337(a), end 1345; 42 U.B.C. § 3614; 15 VU.s.C.
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§5 53(b), 1607(c), and 1681(h); and 12 U.8.C. § 2614, Venue is
appropriate pursuant to 28 U.s.C §§ 1391 (b} and (c) and 1352(s)},
as well:as 15 U.s.C. § 53(b).

3.. Defendant, Delta Funding Corporation ("Delta Punding”),

vy

is a wholly owned subaidiary of defendant Delta Fimancial
CQrpozagicn, a publicly held acompany traded on the New York Stock
Bxchange (except where otherwise noted, both defendance are
colleqtively referred to as 'Delta’). Delta is ;nCOrpcrated
under the lawa of the State of Delaware, with its principal place
of bu=iness in Woodbury, New York.

4, Fxom at least 1982 until the present, Delta's busginess
has incﬁudéd regularly engaging in residential real estate-

. relatedltransactions and regularly extending credit £o persons.
Delta's ?ome mortgage loans are residential real estate-related
transactﬁons within the meaning of the Fair Housing Act, 42
U.s.C. § 3605 and are fedezally related mortgage leans as defined
in the Real EZatate Settlement Procedures Act, 12 U.S.C. 8 25602.
Delta is a creditor as thAt.term ia- defined by section 702(e) of
the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, 15 U.5.C. § 1652ale), and is,
therefors, subject te the requirements of the Equal Credit
opportunity Act and its implementing Regulation B, as amended, 12
C.F.R. P?rt 202, in effect on or after March 23, 1377. Further,
Delta Fupding is a creditor as that term is defined by Section
103 (£) of TILA, is U.S5.C. § 1602 (f), and Section 226.2(a) {17) of
its im?lémenting'Regul&tion Z, 12 C.F.R. § 226.2(a) (17). At all

timeg relevant to this complaint, Delta Funding has maintained a

2
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aubstantzal course of trade in or affecting commexce, as
"commerue“ is defined in sectien 4 cf the FTC Act, 15 v.s.C.
§ 44.

5. . Delta’'s brokers are entities that bring borrowers and

Delta tﬁgether for the borrower to obtain home mortgage loans.

Delta sBolicits and receives applications for credit, primarily
through mortgage brokers who submit home mortgage loan
applicat;ons fram potential borrowera. Such broker gubmissiona
are referrals under the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act and
irs impl?menting regulations, 24 C.F.R. 3500.14(£) .

§. The persons on whoae behalZf auch credit applicationa are
submittea are applicants as that term iz defined by section
702 (h) "of the Egual Credit opportunity Aet, 15 U.S.C. §1651(b).

7. -Delta undexwrites each loan submitted to it by its
brokera;;if it approves the application, the loan is funded in
Delta's ﬁame. The actions by Delta and its brokers in the
crzginaticn and making of the moxtgage loan constitute a
settlement sarvice as defined by the Real Estate Settlement
Procedures Act, 12 U.S.C. § 2602(3).

8. Delta's lending operations are goncentrated in New York
State, partlcularly in Kings and Queens Counties, but are not
limited thereto. In recent years, Delta has been eXpanding its

home mortgage lending activities to other agtates. In 1538, Delta

' funded at least 8,561 loans. Almost half (4,170) were on homes

locatad in New York State, and of those, 2,040 wére in Xings and

Queens Countiss. According to the 1550 Census, the majority of
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the rgsidents of these two counties aze Afriéan American or
Hisﬁaﬁi;. Delta's moxtgage lending operatioms in the twe
counties are concentrated in the minority residential areas.

5.  In conducting its home mortgage lending ‘operaticnsa,
:Delta haa chesen to serve the “subprime” or "B/C" mortgage loan
market. As a subprime lendex, Delta holds itself our as willing
to apprave and fund loane to borrowers wno have flawed credit
histories and/er debt-to-incoms ratios that are higher than those
deemed écceptable in the "A" or ‘conforming’ mortéage market.

10: Within the subprime market, Delta further specializes
in refinmnc;ng rather than purchase-money loans. In New York
State and within the state in Kings and Queens Counties, more
than 75%3°f Delta's loans azre refinancings. Many of Delta's
subprime! refinancings are for homeowners who obtain loans that
are secured by their homes end are used to pay off unsecured
debta Sr to pay for home improvements. Approximately 20% af
Delta‘'s ﬁcrtgage loans are high-rate or high-fee loana within the
meaning of the Home Ownership and Equity Protectlon Act of 1934
(YHOEPA"} , which amended TILA by adding Sectiom 129 of TILA, 15
U.s.C. § 1635, and 1s implemented by, jintex alia, Sections 226.31
and 226.32 of Requlation Z, 12 C.P.R. §§ 226.31 and 226.32.

Among other things, HOBPA, which took effact on October 1, 1855,
applies £O high cost refinancing and home equity loans that are
gecured by the borzewer's principal dwelling and where the total
pcintslaﬁd fees payable by the borrowar at or before loan cloaing

will exceed eight percent of the total loan amount.

4
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11. The Delta brokers' fees are paid in :hree.differant
ways, w#th 211 costs ultimately boxrme by the borrower: (a)
through: "up-£front® chaxges, fees, Or pointas, with points being a

percentage of the loan amount paid to the broker (usually at loan

:cloaingéfrom the proceeds of the loanm); (b) thzough 'back-end"

fees (aiso called "yield spread premiums”), Qhereby the borrower
accepts an interest rate that is higher than Delta's par interest
rate ané Delta makes 2 direcﬁ payment to the broker foxr securing
the higﬁer-than-par lcan; and (c) through "miscellanecus" fees,
which are usually paid out of loan proceeds. During the 1336-
1558 peﬁiod.lalmost all of Delta's borrowers in King's and Queens
Countieg incurred front fees, one-third incurred both front and
back fees, and one-tenth incurred all three kinds of fees.-

12. Delte is responsible for the fees charged to borrowers
for its loans.' I+ individually underwrote and funded each loan,
it approved each loan fee paid to a broksr, and it aided itvs
brokers ﬁn cbtaining unearned fees described herein. With
respecﬁ to a substantial pertion of tha loans,.Delta was aware
that little or no Bervices were being performed in exchange for
the brokér charges. Further, Delta knew that the tatal of the
broker compensation did not hear a reasonable relation to the
level 6£;the.gooda and servises that the brckers provided or
perfcrmeg. In fact, Delta aided its bzokers in obtaining the
unearnedifees described herein by pegforming many of the sexvices

for the brokers.
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'13. Delta's brakers typically charged fees ranging from one
to 10 percent oy mors of the total amount borrowed. Delta's
borrowezs, particularly those who were charged high fee amounts,

seldom hsd the cash on hand with which ®o pay all of the bxockerzs'

Ty

‘feeg. Therefore, the barrowers' loan amounts were increased to
cover tﬁe high fees. The increased loan proceeds provided Delta
with ad@itional profit and with a mechanism through which to pay
its brokers. In doing so, Delta directly or indirectly gave a
portioﬁ bf the loan proceeds to'its mortgage brokers to pay
charges ?or’which no or roeminal services were rendered,

| 14.. Delta alsc frequently gave its broker a portiom of the
broker fees in comnection with a mortgage loan in the form of a
vield spread premium, when no or nominal services were actually
performe&. In addition, such payments constituted the giving of
a thing §f value in exshange for the referral of loan businesas.

15.; Delta's paymenta to brokerxs, the performance of
services for the brckera by Delta for which the brokers received
paymens.zand the approval and asslatance given to brokers by
Delta that provided an opportunity to charge unearned fees,
conatiﬁuﬁed things of value in excﬁange for the brokers'
referrals of loan business to Delta. .
16. - Delta's brokers received their fees without regard te

risk thaﬁ the borrower would default on the loan, and no part of
the broker fees referred to herein related rgo the credit xisk

presen:ed'by the borrower.



04/04/00 11:17 FAX 202 514 4278 DOJ PUBLIC AFFAIRS doos

‘ .28/38
MAR-33-2998 17:89 DOJ/CRD/HIOUSING og2 514 1116 P 3

17. Delta Funding has often approved loans without regazd
te a boirower's ability to repay when prudent underwriting
cxiteria, such as debt-to-income ratiecs, residual income, and

repayment history, would have indicated that the borrower would

¥

5likely Eave difficulty repaying the lesan. Delta Funding has
apprcved loans whera the borrower'!s debt payments would consume
more tﬁ;n half of the borrower's total pre-tax income, and in
many instances would leave the borrawer with less than adequate
income for livin§ expenses. 1In many instances, Delta Funding
has reliéd on unverified income of the borrower with no
reaeonab?e basis for believing that such income exists and would
support Ehe loan. Delta Funding also has approved mortgage loans
that cause the borrower's monthly debt payments o increase,
despite Delta Funding's knowledge of the borraower's past
inability to maet the lower prior monthly payments. In many
cases, -there was no change in the borrower's circumstances or
ather évidence to suggest that the borrower would be able to meet
the newer and more onerous requirements. Delta'sm practice of
apprcviné loans without regard tc borrowers' ability to repay has
exposed borrowers teo unwarranted risk of default and foreclosure.
18.' A comwparison of Delta's broker fees paid by 1,328
African #merican fermales and 262 white males in Kings and Queens
cQuntiesgduring the 19956-1538 pericd show that the mean broker
fee for Sfrican American females was 6.24% of the lean amount,
whereas ﬁhe broker fee forlsimilarly siruated white males was

4.64% of the loan amount. This means, for example, that for a

7
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lcan in the §100,000 to $125,000 range, African American females

paid over $1,500 more in broker fees than did white malea. There

is vzrtually no poesibility that thia d;fference in the group
means could have occurred by chance. Iz statist:cal terms, when
contrclllng for loan size, the prababilicy that the difference
occurred by chance iam legs thap .0001. The dlfference in price
between the African American female borrowers Was unrelated to
the qualiflcatlons of the borrowers or the IlSk to the lender.

19£ Delta has sublected its African American female
borroue%s to terms and conditions for home mortgage loang that
resulted in thoae borrowers paying more for their loana than
similarly situated white male borrowers.

20. Delta's policies and practices, as alleged herein,
conatifﬁte:

; a. Discriminaﬁicn on the bagis of rdce and sex in
making available residential zeal estate-related
transactions in violation of Section 805 of the Fair
Ecousing Act, 42 ﬁ.s.c. § 3sc05(a): and
b. Discrimination against applicants with respect to

" exedit transacﬁions, on the basis of race and sex in
violation of the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, 15
U.s.c. § 1s91i{a) (1).

21.  The defendants' policies and practices constitute:

a. A patterm or practice of resistance to the full
; enjoyment of rights secuzed by the Fair Housing Act, as

amended, 42 U.s.C. §§ 3601-3619, and the Equal Credit
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Opportunity Act, 15 U.5.C. §5§ 1691-1631f; gnd

h. A denial of rights granted by the Pair Housing Act,
as amended, to a group of persons that raises an issue
of general public importance.

22; This pattern or practice and denial of righta occurred
at 1easﬁ between January 1, 1395 and December 31, 1538.

23. Perscns who have been victima of Delté's discriminatory
policies and practices are aggrieved persons asz defined in the
Fair Hoésing Act and the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, and have
suffered damages as a result of the Pelta's conduct as desgcribed
herein. E ‘

24.. Delta's discriminatory policies and practices were
ijptentional and willful, and were implemented with deliberate
disregarﬁ for the righrts of African American women.

2S.. In the course of offering and extending credit to
borrawers, Delta Funding has violated EQEPA by engaging in asset-
based leﬁding and including loan terms prohibited by HOEPA.
specifically:

a. Delta Funding has violated, and continues to
violate, the requiiements of HOEPA and Regulation 2 by
engaging in & pattern or practice of extending such |

' credit to a borrower based oa the bor:owér's collateral
rather than considering the borrower's current and
'expected income, current obligations, and employment
gtatus to determine whether the borrower ia able to

' make the scheduled payments to repay the cbligation, in

9
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violation of Section 129({n) of TILA, 15 U.S.C.

§ 1635(h), and Section 226732(e)(1) of Regulation Z,

12 C.F.R. § 226.32(e) (1):

b. Delta Funding in numercus instances has vielated,
and-continués to violate, the reguirements of HOEFA and
Regulation Z by including & prohibited “prepayment
penalty" provision, in violaticn of Section 123({¢) of
TITA, 15 U.S.C. § 1633(c), and Sectionm 226.32(d) (8) of
Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. § 226.32(4) (6} ; and

c. Delta punding in numercus instances has violated,
and continues to violate, the requirements of HOEPA and
Regulation Z by ircluding a prohibited "increased
{interest rate after default” proviaioni in violation o=
Section 129(d) of TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1639(d}., 2and
Section 226.32(d) (4) of Regulatiom Z, 12 C.F.R.

§ 226.32(d) (4).

Delta's policies and practices, as alleged hexein,

constiture:

a. The giving of a kickback or thing of value for the

referral of sertlement service business involving a

federally related mortgage loan in violation of Section
g8(a) of the Reai Estate Settlement Procedures Act, 12
v.5.c, .§ 2607(a); and

b. The giving of a portion or percentage of a

sectlement service charge involving a fedexally related

| mortgage loan other than for services actually

10
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performed in viclation of Section (8) (b} of the Real
Estate Settlement Frocedures Act, 12 U.5.C. § 2607(b).
57 pelta's viclatioms of RESPA, HOEPA and TILA have
- .injurédlits borrowers and, absent injunctive and other relietf
‘enteredlby this court, are likely to continue to injure borrowers
and harm the public interest.

WHHREFORE, the United States prays that the court entexr an
6RDER that:

A. Declares that the policies and.practices of the
defendants between 1396 and 1338 constitute a vioclationm of the
Falz Hou;sing Act, 42 U.S.C. E§ 3601-3613, the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act, 15 U.8.C. §§ 1691-1631%; the Real Estate
settlement Procedures Act, 12 U.S.C. § 2607; and tha Truth in
Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. §5 1601-16663 (including the Homs
cunershié and Equity Protection Aﬁ:, 15 U.s.C. § 1639).

B. Enjoins defendants, their agepts, employees, successors,
and all ﬁther‘persons in active concert or participation with
them, from discrimimating on account of race, celor, or sex in
any aspett of their home mortgage lending activities; from
violatiné the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, including
but not limited to the anti-kickback and unearned fees provisions
of the Act; and from violating any provigion of the'Home
Ownershig and Equity Protection Act, Truﬁh in Lendiﬁg Act, and
Regulatién 2, including but not limited to engaging in apset-

based lending and including loan terms prohibited by HOEPA.

11
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C. Requires defendants to develop and submit to plaintiff
and thelcourt for approval a detailed plan that: (1) remedlies the
vestiéeé of defendants' discriminatory poligies and pxactices;
(2) enaures that all future borrowers will be treated in a
7nondi§c£iminator§ mannexr; and {3) emsures that all things of
value aﬁd all payments made to defepndants' brokers by borrowers
and deféndants are in exchange for actual serviceg provided; are,
in tctéI, reagonably related to the gocds and services provided;
and are not for the referral of settlement business to
defendaﬂts; |

D. ' Awards such damages as would fully compensmate the
victimp of defendants' discriminatory policies and practices for
the inju?ies caused by the defendants;

E. ;Awardsv punitive damages to the viectims of. defendanta’
digeriminatory policies and practices;

F:  Awards ancillary equitable relief in the form of
restitﬁticn to the victims of defendants' unlawful pelicies and

practices; and

12
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The United States further prays for such additional relilef
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" as the interests of justice may require.
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